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PROCEEDI NGS
MONDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 1998 YUBA CITY, CALIFORNIA 6:35 P.M
COW SSI ONER MOORE: Good eveni ng. Wl cone back

We' || reconvene the evidentiary hearing on the Sutter power
plant project. And we will reconvene with the second half
of our discussion on alternatives, and since that
alternative section in the end will take us into
transm ssion siting, we'll take some testinmony at the end of
this on technical transm ssion and engi neering issues. Wth
that, M. Fay, back to you, and | believe staff presentation
on alternatives

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: (kay. Before we begin, 1'd

just like to cover a few points. | think -- to be sure that
the public can hear the witness, | think |I'mgoing to ask
the witnesses to testify over here. W'IIl try and see if
that works. |I'mnot sure how the arrangenent is. | hope
the mi ke over there works. |Is that all right with you, M.
Ratliff?

MR, RATLI FF:  Sure.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: O you can stand and use
this mcrophone right here. Wuld you prefer that? W just
have a different arrrangenent here and it's not flexible at
all. | think if you speak up, the audi ence can probably
hear much of what you say, and what they can't they can
determne it's lawer stuff. But the witness would probably

4
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really want to hear. |f anybody has a probl em hearing,
especially the people who are not on a mike, | encourage you
to come forward and just raise a hand if you' re having
trouble hearing, and we'll try to make our adjustnent to
this room

I just want to point out that if you | ook at your
agenda -- we have sone nore copies of the agenda that are
avai l able. Under five at the bottom "Presentation of
Affidavits and Witten Testinony in Subject Areas" -- al
those areas were considered to be of less vital interest to
the | ocal people, and these were areas that essentially the
staff and the applicant and CURE had agreed upon, and there
was not the need to do the summaries, the evidence. So the
evidence -- we anticipate that the evidence will just be
submitted on affidavit.

However, if you have a question that will cone up in
any of these areas, we definitely want to give you an chance
to ask that question. And what |I'mgoing to ask staff to do
after we've finished with transmssion line is get the
proj ect manager to just summarize briefly what the anal ysis
is for each of these areas so you can put sone nmeaning to
those terns, those words like "facility design." And he'll
expl ain what type of analysis is done by the energy
commi ssion and the applicant under that headi ng.

And if you find, as he goes through that list, that

5
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you've got a question in a certain area, we'll ask you to
rai se your hand and ask the question right then. |If the
proj ect manager cannot answer it, again, we may have to cal
a witness at a later time to be sure you get the answer you
need. Al right. Any questions about that before we start
up agai n? Ckay.

Then we' ve conpleted hearing fromthe applicant's
witness, first witness on alternatives. And now we'll hear
fromthe staff and then go back to the applicant after
There are other witnesses on alternatives that are going to
deal with transm ssion and other issues. M. Ratliff?

MR. RATLIFF: Yes. The staff witness is Marc
Pryor.
HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Wbuld the court reporter

pl ease swear M. Pryor in?

Testi nony of
MARC PRYOR
called as a witness, having been duly sworn, was exani ned
and testified as foll ows:
DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR RATLI FF
Q (By MR RATLIFF) M. Pryor, were you the principa
author of the testinmony in the alternatives analysis of the
FSA?
A Yes, | was.
6
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Q Who el se contributed to that anal ysis?

A Loreen McMahon from Western Area Power Administration.
Q But you were the principal author? You consulted with
her in the drafting; is that correct?

A Yes, | did.

Q Do you have any changes to make in your testinony?

A | do not.

Q Is it true and correct to the best of your know edge and
bel i ef?

A It is.

Q Coul d you summarize briefly your testinmony and its

concl usi ons?

A The purposes -- the purpose of staff's alternatives
anal ysis is to provide the decision makers with the
reasonabl e range of feasible alternative sites which can
substantially reduce or avoid any potentially significant
adverse inpacts of the proposed project. | conpared siting
alternatives to the proposed project without mtigation
measures applied to that project.

W started with originally six areas of potentially
significant environnental inpacts. They were air quality,
hazardous materials, |and use, visual resources, biologica
resources and water resources.

The first part of the analysis was the no-project
alternative. | found that the no-project to be

7
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environnmental |y superior but only slightly to the proposed
project. | used what | considered to have been a
conservative and cautious approach in that | did not agree
with the applicant's contention that the site would displace
ol der and dirtier power plants absent information to support
their argunment. As has been entered earlier this evening,
the applicant has supplied and | saw Wdnesday docunentation
that supports their contention, and in general, we agree.

The concerns for other inpacts in air quality, though
wer e biol ogical and water resources. Those have been
mtigated as far as the new proposals are concerned, and
only the visual concern remains. Adequate -- as | said,
adequate mitigation nmeasures have been proposed, which were
bi ol ogi cal and water.

The practical aspect for this was for me -- | would
have to identify an environnmentally preferred alternative
fromthe list of remaining alternative sites. And there's a
distinction that 1'd like to make between the
CEQA and the NEPA anal yses. This environnental preferred
alternative applies only to the CEQA anal ysi s.

Q Just to clarify, you nean -- when you say CEQA, you
mean the California Law and California Environmental --
A California Environnental Quality Act
as opposed to the National Environnmental Policy Act.
Q Which is federal |aw?

8
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A Which is federal and which Western adhered to. |
started with 11 potential sites. Some of these cane from
the Sacranmento Et hanol Partners Cogeneration Project; others
from public suggestions at workshops; and then we had sone
staff suggestions as well.

| applied a set of criteria to screen out sone of these
sites. The criteria involved or included distances to
Western's 230 kV lines and natural gas supply lines and
avoi dance of nmediumto high density residential areas. The
di stances | used for transmission |lines and natural gas
lines were conparable to those that were proposed by
Cal pi ne.

I then | ooked at the sites and the zoning of the
particular sites to see -- to determ ne whether site contro
was feasible or not. Zoning or the potential for rezoning
was determ ned by whether the site was cultivated within the
last year. | was left with four alternative sites after
goi ng through these two steps. One is the
O Banyan (phonetic) Road site. |It's to the west side of
O Banyan Road next to the Sutter Bypass and on the south
si de of the road.

| originally thought that the -- this parcel was not
under cultivation. | found out otherwise later in the case.
But the site was retained because of the public's continued
i nterest and what seenmed to be a recent failure to require

9
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the site control for a project of this size of a power
plant. There's sone question as to whether that's true now.

The second site was a Sac One site fromthe
Sepco (phonetic) analysis. It's in Sacranento County in the
Elverta area. The third was a site in the Sutter Buttes
i ndustrial area, which is in South Sutter County. And the
fourth and last was an industrial site in the south Sutter
County industrial area -- or correction; Sutter Buttes
i ndustrial area.

A four-site analysis was perforned by technical area
staff, and | presented themw th sites and supply routes for
natural gas, transnmission line routes, water resources and
the F1 discharge routes that | cane up with that | felt were
conparable to what were seen in the unnitigated site for the
Sutter power plant and what nmade sense to ne.

Each alternative was rated by technical staff as being
either better than, the sanme as, or worse than the proposed
project site. This resulted in the O Banyan Road and
Sacranmento sites as being better. However, this conpared
every technical area. And to bring it full circle,
brought it to back to the sixth that were identified at the
start of the analysis, the six technical areas that were
i ndi cated has significant -- potentially significant inpact,
envi ronnent al i mpact .

When conpared to the six, air quality, hazardous

10
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materials, |land use, visual, biology, and water resources,
only the O Banyan Road site seened to be better and only
margi nal ly. Because of unknown factors -- well, this left
me with the environnentally preferred alternative being the
O Banyan Road site. But | have to stress that's only
marginally in conparison. Because of unknown factors that
can only be deternined by a deeper |evel of alternatives
anal ysis, which would require a separate application for
certification, the O Banyan Road site | cannot reconmend

i nstead of the proposed site.

Once again, | want to say that |'maware of mitigation
that has been proposed that elimnates all concerns except
for visual resources, and the problens that | see that have
cropped up with the O Banyan Road site are that it has been
under rice cultivation within the last three years -- this
year it has been -- and the board of supervisors may not be
anenabl e to a zone change and a general plan amendnent to
convert it into an industrial site for a power plant. That
concl udes my presentation.

Q At the beginning of your sunmary, you stated that you
had done your conparison of the alternatives to the project
wi thout applying the mtigation that has since been
di scussed in the project and woul d now be required by the
conditions. Can you explain why that was the case?
A Upon your advice for one thing.

11
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Q Well, did you know at the tinme that you perfornmed your
original analysis what the mitigation ultinmately woul d be?
A I did not know fromthe beginning nor until relatively
recently what the mtigation neasures would be, and | felt
that it didn't warrant the tine and the results probably
woul d not be nodified anyway.

MR, RATLIFF: Thank you. The witness is available
for cross-exam nation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: M. Ellison?

MR, ELLI SON: Thank you

CRCOSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR ELLI SON

Q (By MR ELLISON) M. Pryor, | just have just a few
questions that | think are fairly straightforward. First of
all, with respect to the alternative sites question that you
were just describing, it's true, is it not that the proposed
site has already an existing power plant |ocated there?
A It is true.
Q And the O Banyan site does not have a power plant
| ocated there?
A It does not.
Q Secondly, with respect to the no-project alternative,

I'"d like to ask you to turn to page 21 of your testinobny in

t he FSA
A Ckay.
Q In the fourth paragraph at the bottom after describing

12
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sone of the non-environmental econonic benefits of the
project, you state, quote, "These points are well taken and
the consideration of one or nore of themmay | ead the energy
conmmi ssi on and any ot her deci sion-nmaki ng body involved in
the matter to conclude that the benefits derived by the
construction and operation of the SPP woul d outwei gh the

benefits of not certifying the proposed project," unquote.
Do you see that |anguage?

A Yes, | do.

Q Ckay. Has anything that has happened since you wote
that | anguage changed that opinion?

A No.

Q The staff is recommending, as an overall position in
this case, the approval of the proposed project, correct?

A | believe that's correct.

Q Wuld it be fair then to infer fromthat that the staff

position is that these non-environmental benefits do, in

fact, outweigh the benefits of not certifying the proposed

proj ect ?
A I can't speak for the other technical areas, perhaps.
Q Is it your understanding that staff, as a whole, is

recomendi ng approval of the project, correct?

A Your | ogic does follow that.

Q So logically my statement would -- would it be correct

that the staff, as a whole, believes that the benefits of
13
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certifying the project outweigh the benefits of not
certifying it?
A Yes.
Q Turning to the third paragraph --
A Above that?
Q Above that. The one that begins "w thout supporting
docunentation." Do you see that paragraph?
A Yes, | do.
Q If you need a minute to read the paragraph, let me
know, but ny question is, first of all, as | read it, the
gi st of that paragraph is that in conparing alternatives, in
this case, the no-project alternative to the project -- that
you believe that it's inportant to not single out any one
envi ronnmental paraneter as overriding all the rest of them
Is that a fair summary of the basic point of that paragraph?
A That's fair.
Q If you read the last line of that paragraph, you state
that, "In this case, air quality inpact should not be
assigned overriding inportance to the exclusion of other
envi ronnmental resources such as biological, visual, and
wat er resources.” Do you see that statenent?
A Yes, | do.
Q You have earlier testified this evening that this
proj ect does not have significant inpacts other than visua
according to the staff; is that correct?

14
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A That is correct.

Q Wuld it be fair then to renove fromthis |ast sentence

the references to biol ogical and water resources inpact?
A Yes, it woul d.

Q Okay. In your opinion, is it appropriate for visua
impacts to override all other considerations?

A | don't think it would be proper for me to express an
opi ni on on that.

Q You' ve expressed an opinion that air quality inpact
shoul d not override all others in this paragraph, have you
not ?

A | believe they should be on par.

Q By that do you nean that all of the different

envi ronnment paraneters should be considered equally as
opposed to any one of them overriding?

A The reason | put this inis in the AFC under the

projects -- the AFC s discussion of "no project,” in ny

m nd, dwelled too nmuch on the air quality benefits and did
not nention other potential inpacts in the other areas.
That's what | was trying to convey.

Q | understand but as a principle of doing these kinds of
anal yses, you testified a nonent ago that the gist of this
par agr aph was that one environmental paraneter should not
override the rest of them correct?

A | believe that the visual resources is still a concern

15
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and although the air quality question nay be noot at this

point, there is still the visual; and because of that,
still think that the "no project” being slightly better than
the "proposed project” -- is valid in the sense that it just

forces me to go a little step further by deternining the
environmental ly preferred alternative

MR, RATLIFF: Conmissioner, if | may -- | don't
want to object to M. Ellison's questioning, but | would
like to clarify what | think is one of the difficulties --
this answer and this question is, and that is in his
anal ysis, the witness has identified -- actually, basically,
tried to evaluate, in a very gross way, the different
conparative inpacts but he -- there's no way to assign to --
whet her waste hazard, for instance, is nore inportant than
visual or anything like that, and nor was it his intention
to try to put any wei ght on those.

And | think his difficulty is that he really never set
out, nor does he, anywhere in his testinony -- that says
whet her or not, for instance, a visual inpact is nore
important or less inportant than air quality benefits. And
I think that the difficulty we have here is that that's just
sonmet hing that he never attenpted to address. | wanted to
clarify that.

COW SSI ONER MOORE: | think, M. Ratliff, that it
is probably what counsel is trying to elicit.
16

(800) 200- DEPO SW TZER & ASSCC. (530) 342-0199



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

MR ELLISON: That's my point exactly.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Perhaps the easiest way to
approach this is for the witness to indicate whether M.
Ratliff has stated that succinctly and if he nmight be able
to -- if the answer that M. Ratliff is proposing to counse
i s accurate.

THE WTNESS: | believe it's accurate
Q (By MR ELLISON) Let nme then ask you this. The staff
has stipulated that there are displacenent benefits as a
result of the Sutter power project as described in M.
Kenkel 's (phonetic) testinony although staff does not
necessary agree with the quantification in Ms. Kenkel's
testinmony. They have agreed with the principle that there
are such benefits. Are you famliar with that?
A I only found that out this norning.
Q Well, in your own testinony at the begi nning of
par agraph three, you state, "However, based on work done in
previous electricity reports, the SPP will likely displace
| ess econonic and dirtier facilities although the |ocation
or quantification of such benefits is unknown." Do you see
that statenent?
A Yes, | do.
Q Based on that statement and putting aside Ms. Kenkel's
testimony for a noment -- just based on that statenent, |
read that statenent as saying you agree that there are

17
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di spl acement benefits, environnental displacenment benefits
fromthis project; is that correct?

A Yes.

Q It appears, though, that you're reading those benefits
as being only air quality benefits. |Is it your opinion that
by displacing dirtier projects -- that the only benefits are

air quality benefits?

A Wul d you restate that, please?

Q Let me cone at it a different way.

A Ckay.

Q This is a -- now -- as configured now, as mtigated

now, is a project that uses dry cooling, correct?

A That's ny under st andi ng.

Q The projects that it would likely displace would not

use dry cooling, correct?

A | don't know that.

Q You don't know?

A No, | don't.

Q Do you have any sense of which projects would likely be

di spl aced?

A No, | don't.

Q Are you aware of any projects in California that use

dry cooling?

A I"'mnot an expert on this.

Q Well, tothe limt of your expertise and know edge,
18
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since you know of no projects that have dry cooling, would
it be a fair assunption that this project will likely

di spl ace a project that does not have dry cooling?

A That's beyond ny know edge.

Q How can you do a conparison of the water inpacts of
this project versus not doing a project if you have no idea
of what the water use of the projects that will continue to
generate if this project does not --

(Reporter interrupted proceedings.)

MR RATLIFF: | think | have to object based on
the witness's testinobny. His testinony conpares water
i mpacts of the project to the alternatives that he
considered. It doesn't conpare -- purport to conpare the
i mpacts to water whether this project is being built or not
being built. It doesn't address that.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Actually, if | recall the
text correctly, it conpares projects in a fairly linmted
geographic area, and M. Ellison's question would really
seemto enconpass al nbst state wide in ternms of its scope
So in the sense that the matrix that was presented within
the staff report, the final staff assessnent -- really does
limt itself to projects that would have roughly the sane
characteristics as this one and that it confines itself to
within the region of "here."

And goi ng back to the question that | asked your
19
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Wi t ness before about the nodel, the

Elfin (phonetic) nodel, | think that his analysis has got to
be seen on a much broader basis than the question that
you're asking. | don't suggest that it's not a rel evant
question, but |I think it's sinply, as | read it, and staff
can correct me if I'mwong -- the context was nuch broader
and sinply couldn't even address the kind of specific
question that you're asking. Am|l correct, M. Ratliff?

MR. RATLIFF: | think you' re correct that we don't
have a wi tness, perhaps, that can appropriately answer the
questions that are being asked of this w tness, at |east
regarding water quality.

Regarding air quality, the nature of an alternatives
wi tness, unfortunately, is to kind of be a sumup witness
for a collective group of issues. And in this sense, |
don't think M. Pryor can speak to which power plants are
goi ng to be displ aced.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Unless | miss ny bet, M.
Ellison is going in a direction that woul d suggest that the
| anguage here draws sone conclusions that it can't
justifiably nmake and, therefore, if |I'm seeing you
correctly, there ought to be sone exclusion in sone of this
| anguage if he can't back it up. |Is that where you're
headed with this?

MR ELLISON: | wasn't going to propose excluding

20
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the language. | was hoping to clarify it. | would say that
this particul ar paragraph, although it's only one paragraph
does address this issue of displacenent on broader than a
regi onal basis, and Cal pi ne believes that's an inportant
i ssue, one that's underrepresented in this docunent. So |
recogni ze that elsewhere in the alternatives analysis, it is
definitely a regional analysis in terms of |ooking for
alternative sites

But when you are conparing to the no-project
alternative, the project that night continue to run if we
don't site Sutter is not necessarily located within this
region. In fact, it probably is not located in this region
But the environnental inpact of continuing to run it is
nonet hel ess real, so my question just focused on what is
that environmental inpact.

COWM SSI ONER MOORE: I n considering the nature of

your questions, can | presune that you have alternative

| anguage that you'd like to offer us?

MR ELLISON: What -- in a nutshell -- |'m not
trying to play ganes here. What | would like -- | agree
with the staff's -- the essence of this paragraph that says,

| believe, that one environnmental paraneter shoul d not
override a conprehensive conparison of all of them between
the two alternatives. | think that's the staff position
It's certainly Cal pine's position

21
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In this paragraph, it's used to say that the air
quality benefits of displacenment should not override what
are described as at least three areas of significant inpact
for Sutter. But | think the record will show at the end of
this proceeding that the conparison actually puts the shoe
on the other foot; that there's only one significant
environnmental inpact fromthis project, if you believe the
staff. W believe there are none. But if you believe the
staff, there's one visual

And there are benefits of displacenent that are not
just confined to air quality. They go to air quality, they
go to water quality, they go to drainage, and a variety of
other issues that result fromdisplacing of a project. All
I"'mtrying to do is establish that the sanme principle that |
believe staff was intending to testify to here, when applied
to the facts that now exist to this nmitigated project,
suggests that the no-project alternative is, in fact, not
environmental |y preferable.

COWM SSI ONER MOORE:  Your point is taken.

MR ELLI SON:  So now you know exactly what |'m
trying to say to you, M. Pryor. |If |I may resune, 1'll keep
this very brief.

Q (By MR ELLISON) Based on your expertise and

under st andi ng, can you testify that the benefits of

di spl acing other, as you described them |ess econonm c and
22
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dirtier facilities are only air quality benefits?
A As | understood the AFC, it only addressed "ol der and
dirtier." | believe those were the words fromthe AFC in
relation to air quality. | don't think it addressed water,
for instance.
Q I'"'mnot asking what the AFC says. |'m asking what's
true. Can you -- do you have an opinion? Are you prepared
to testify that the benefits are only air quality benefits?
A As they are now mtigated in the project?
Q Yes. The project as it now stands.
A As it now stands because of the mitigation, both
bi ol ogi cal and water resources concerns drop out, and all
that remains in ny nind is a potential for visual
Q But that's not the question |I'm asking you. W've
asked and answered that.
A I don't understand you.
Q My question is the benefits of displacenent now -- we
have a mtigated project, dry cooling, zero discharge, 2.5
"knots" -- the benefits of that project displacing the ol der
and | ess economic, nore dirtier projects, which you' ve
testified to -- are those benefits in your opinion confined
to air quality, or is it possible that there are benefits in
ot her environmental areas as well?
A | guess | don't understand the question.

MR RATLIFF: Well, | think -- if | can help,
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think he's referring to page 21 of your testinony.

THE W TNESS: Yes.

MR. RATLIFF: The fourth paragraph on the page
where there is reference to the purported benefits of the
project in terms of ol der support tax revenues and so forth.
He's asking if there are any other benefits other than air
quality benefits.

THE WTNESS: 1Is that true?

MR, ELLI SON:  Yes.

THE WTNESS: Yes, | would --

(Reporter interrupted proceedings.)

THE WTNESS: Yes, | would agree that there are
other benefits fromny linited perspective.

Q (By MR ELLISON) So is it fair to say that we have on
the one hand with the no-project alternative -- we avoid a
singl e negative inpact visual?
A At this tinme, yes
Q Ckay. And on the other hand, by pursuing the
no-project alternative, we give up potential displacenent
benefits in air quality, plus other environnental areas as
wel | ?
A What do you nean by "give up"? |'msorry.
Q We do not create the displacenent that would result in
the benefits in air quality and other areas.
A Yes, | understand what you nean. That's true.
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MR, ELLISON: That's all | have. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Any recross or redirect?

MR. RATLIFF: Yes, just one question.

REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR RATLI FF

Q (By MR RATLIFF) In your testinony, M. Pryor, you
refer to voltage support that the project would provide. |Is
that based on the transm ssion planning analysis that M.
McCuen will testify to later this evening?
A That was based upon information fromthe Sacranento
Area Transm ssion Planners Goup that cane via M. MCuen in
di scussions with him
Q Ckay. Would it be best to defer that discussion to M.
McCuen's testinony, then, as to whether or not there are
benefits from vol tage support?
A It woul d.
Q In ternms of inpacts fromthe di splacenent of other
power plants, would it be correct to say that you didn't
anal yze the inpacts on either water pollution or water use
outside of the very localized area where you | ooked at
alternatives to the power plant?
A No, we did not.

MR. RATLIFF: Thank you. | have no other
questi ons.

EXAM NATI ON BY HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY
Q (By MR FAY) M. Pryor, on the benefits of the
25
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O Banyan Road site, which was your preferred alternative

al though marginally, | understand, in the second paragraph
under O Banyan on page 31 you state that U S. Fish and
Wldlife expressed a concern about inpacting views at that
site; views fromthe Sutter National WIdlife Refuge. How
did you evaluate that comment by the agency in charge of
the refuge with the visual inpact of the project? |'mjust
trying to understand how you wei gh -- because this appears
to be visual inpact that you cited of the O Banyan Road
site, and visual is essentially the linchpin. It seens |ike
we have another visual inpact on the preferred site. |'m
trying to understand how the inpact appeared.

A | consulted visual resources expert, Gary \Wal ker, and
bel i eve he asked counsel, and | rmay be incorrect, but |
believe he did; and it was at |east his belief that because
there's no tine line attached to the expansion of the

wildlife refuge or at least the tine frame for providing

access to the public -- that he felt it was too specul ative.
Q But there are people using the refuge now, is that a
correct?

A There are, as | understand it, hunters who use it.

Q Now at your cl osing paragraph, page 33 and page 34, it
says, "Staff does not have sufficient basis to conclude that
the O Banyan site is environmentally preferable to the SPP
project site." And I'mnot sure what the conmittee is
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supposed to do with this. It seenms to convey that you're
anbivalent. Are we to conclude that there's just this
mar gi nal benefit to the O Banyan site or none, or what
factors would tip it one way or the other?
A It would appear, fromny table three on 33, that the
O Banyan site would be slightly nore preferable. However,
there are so many aspects that we don't know about at this
| evel analysis and -- for instance, in the proposed project,
there have been nmany, many factors that have taken nmonths to
conme to the surface that we could not nake a recommrendati on
that the O Banyan site was indeed better. There nmay be
things that are hidden fromus now that woul d actually nake
it worse.
Q So | take it this is not a strong recomrendation of the
O Banyan site over the proposed alternative?
A It is not.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: That's all | have.

MR. ELLISON: M. Fay, can | ask one follow up
question?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Sure.

RECROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR, ELLI SON
Q (By MR ELLISON) M. Pryor, we haven't taken testinony
on visual issues yet. That will cone later in this
proceeding. And as you may know, Cal pi ne does not concur
with staff's view that the visual inpacts are significant.
27
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My question is if the committee were to cone to the

concl usion that Cal pine was correct, meaning that the visua
i npacts are not significant, would you describe how that
woul d change your conclusion on the relative nerit of the
sites that you | ooked at?

A I think it would bring the O Banyan and the proposed
site at least to the sanme |evel and then to decide which one
of the proposed projects is final is not my realm

Q The purpose of |ooking at alternatives under CEQAis to
seek to find alternatives which would nitigate significant

i npacts, correct?

A One or nore.

Q If the project has no significant inpacts as mtigated,

does one need to do an alternative analysis at all?

A That's a question | posed to counsel early on and they
said "yes."
Q So your testinmony is that in doing that analysis, the

O Banyan site would no | onger be preferable to slightly
preferabl e as you've testified to the -- using your matrix
on table three?
A Yes.

MR ELLI SON:  Thank you

MR RATLIFF: May | ask two questions on redirect?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Yes.

FURTHER REDI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR RATLI FF
28
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Q (By MR RATLIFF) M. Pryor, is it your understanding

the county has devel oped a general plan policy regarding

agricultural lands and the conversion of agricultural |ands

to non-agricultural use?

A | believe there's a policy. |'mnot certain whether

it's a general plan policy.

Q Do you know if it mght be inplenmented to that general

pl an?

A I don't know. |[|'d have to defer to M. Carpenter.

Q Do you know if -- with regard to that policy, whether

it pertains to the general plan or not, do you know if the

diversion of this site, the O Banyan site, for the power

pl ant woul d be consistent with that policy?

A My understanding is that, based on one or two

conversations with M. Carpenter -- that, no, it's not

consistent with sone policy that the county has.

Q So woul d that create a nonconformity with that site,

concerning the |l and use of that site -- would be not in

conformance with the decision by the conmi ssion to place the

power plant on that site?

A Yes.

Q Do you -- in addition to that, do you know if the

appl i cant has any assurance that they could get control of

that site for a power plant?

A No, that's under debate. That would be under debate.
29
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Q Do you have any assurance of that?

A | have no assurance.

(I'nterruption in audience)

THE WTNESS: | have no assurance that the

proponent woul d be able to gain access.

(I'nterruption in audience)

MR. RATLIFF: The question was does the witness

have any assurance that the project proponent would be able

to obtain that site for a power plant. And your answer is,

as | understand it --

now we' ||

over one.

THE W TNESS: No.

MR. RATLIFF: No other questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Anything further?

MR, ELLI SO\ No.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you, M. Pryor. And
nmove to Cal pine's other witness on alternatives.
MR ELLISON: | would call M. Janmes L. Dykes.

COWM SSI ONER MOORE:  You're going to have to nove

CHAI RVAN KEESE: Try this one.

MR ELLISON: 1'Il tell you what. While M. Dykes

is getting seated, would you like us to go into all of his

testinmony including the transm ssion |ine testinony, or

woul d you like for us to confine it?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Well, | think -- let's take
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it all because then we can take M. MCuen and stay with the
schedul e.

MR, ELLI SON: Ckay.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR ELLI SON

Q (By MR ELLISON) M. Dykes, are you the person who
prepared the portion of Exhibit 26 beginning at page 21 that
addresses transm ssion |line safety and transmni ssion system
engi neering?
A Yes, | am
Q And attached to that is a declaration dated Cctober
22nd, 1998; is that your signature?
A Yes, it is.
Q Is this testinony true and correct to the best of your
know edge?
A Yes, it is.
Q Coul d you summari ze your testinony including
summari zi ng the vol tage support benefits of the project?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Just a minute. Wuld the

court reporter please swear M. Dykes?

Testi mony of
JAMES L. DYKES
called as a witness, having been duly sworn, was exani ned
and testified as foll ows:
Q (By MR ELLISON) Before we do that, do you have any
31
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additions or corrections to this testinony?

A No, | do not.

Q Coul d you pl ease sumari ze the testinony?

A The testinony really involves two separate issues; the
el ectrical interconnection of the proposed Sutter power
plant with the regional grid and then the physical process
of doing that interconnect. For the electrical integration
Cal pi ne di scussed the integration plans, both with Wstern
Area Power Adm nistration and Pacific Gas and El ectric
Conpany since they were the two utilities that had resources
in the area.

After that discussion, it became apparent that the nost
reasonabl e nethod of integrating the plant with an
electrical utility grid was via the Western Area Power
Admi ni stration transmi ssion lines that run approxi mately
three niles fromthe site. The purpose of the integration
was to investigate the inpact that the Sutter power plant
has on the reliability and the integrity of the regiona
power system

In order to properly investigate what the resource
woul d do to the system Cal pine contacted Western and asked
themto do an integration study. This was perforned as part
of the AFC. The results -- sone of the results of this
study are kind of interesting. |In particular, the coments
that the Sacranmento area requires voltage support is due to
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three different reasons. One of themis increased | oad
growt h throughout the area, a lack of generation in the
area, and insufficient interconnection facilities to support
the inports that are needed for the area.

Wth -- working with Western and with the Sacranento
Area Transm ssion Planning G oup, Calpine has sat on -- in
on all the neetings with the Sacranento Area Pl anni ng G oup
and had several discussions with the Western Area Power
group. The results of the July '97 and ' 98 interconnect
study indicated that the Sutter power plant provides rea
and reactive power near the load center. It also inproves
system vol tages, particularly provides much needed support
in the condition where transm ssion |ines or generators are
taken out for unschedul ed reasons; a transnission |ine would
trip out or the generating plant would go down. The system
is in much need of generation, and this plan does provide
that generati on.

They also indicated in the study that although the
Sutter power plant is not a long-termsolution, it does buy
the region sone time in order to investigate other
alternatives to inprove the voltage in the area. They did
conclude that there were no negative stability inpacts for
the project. They also concluded that the Sutter power
pl ant hel ped i nprove the south to north winter flow on the
Cal i forni a-Oregon interconnect or the 500 kV lines that go
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north to the northwest. Another thing that the plan does is
it allows an additional 350 negawatts of inport without
vol t age i nmpact .

The Sacramento Area Transni ssion Planning G oup put out
a report in April '98. A couple of conments out of there
are of interest. It says, "As indicated, the Sutter power
pl ant can provide system security and del ay other system
enhancing by up to six years.” |f the power plant is not
built and is not available, the region nust start
i medi ately on other reinforcenent options.

Presently there are three options that are under
consi deration by the planning group and these are 230 kV
transmission lines. They are in various projects; one of
themis 32 niles long, one of themis 40 nmles long, and the
other is a 66-mle long line.

The results of building these projects are not as
effective as the construction of the Sutter power plant.

One of the conclusions is that the Sacranento area is in
serious need of additional reinforcenments. The power plant
wi Il enhance the systemreliability and inprove voltage
profiles for this region.

Anot her thing that we investigated or | ooked at was the
el ectrical design. And we assured in our AFC that the
electrical design will conply with all the state, federa
and safety codes. W also made provision in our plans for
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expansion in order to neet whatever plans conme up fromthe
Sacranmento Area Transni ssion Pl anni ng G oup

The physical integration issues that were investigated
are mentioned in the AFC. These have to do with the station
| ocation, the switching station location, and the line
routing. They include fire hazard, which is mtigated by
keepi ng the undergrowth under the |ine under control
aviation safety. W investigated that there are no
comrercial or mlitary planes that -- runways that inpact --
that woul d be inpacted by the construction of these
transm ssion lines -- this transm ssion |line.

The issue with the crop duster runway on O Banyan Road
has been mitigated by relocating; an offer by Calpine to
rel ocate that runway. The noise issue or corona issue is an
i ssue that was nmitigated by design. The studies that have
shown that the noise fromthe transm ssion line or the
corona fromthe transmission line is at the threshol d of
hearing. Radio and TV interference issues were mtigated by
-- can be mtigated by design in construction techniques.
These are generally caused by oxidation of filmon the
surfaces of the electrical conponents; and then finally, the
electric field and el ectromagnetic field. The effects of
the transmi ssion lines can be nitigated by design and
physi cal separation

It was noted in the report that these levels fromthe
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lines, the anticipated |evels, are well below |evels of
states that actually have standards for these -- for these
fields. California does not have any published data for
that. The states that do have data -- the expected field
strengths fromthis line is nuch | ess than what is published
by those states.

In summary, they came to the conclusion that there's
really no adverse electrical inpact on the system |In fact,
the California or the Sutter power plant benefits the
regi onal system by essentially buying them about six years
of time in which to evaluate and devel op other alternatives
to the serious voltage problemthat is in the region

This could be beneficial to the overall area because it
all ows the transm ssion planning people to take the
diligence that's needed to select routes that are of the
| east environnmental inpact and of the least cost to the rate
payers in the state. That's really all | have

MR, ELLISON: For the record, the interconnection
study that you described is incorporated by reference in M.
Dykes' testinony; also included in Exhibit 4, the AFC, in
thi s proceedi ng.
Q (By MR ELLISON) M. Dykes, have you reviewed the
final staff assessment and specifically the conditions that
are set forth therein regarding transmi ssion |line safety and
nui sance and syst em engi neeri ng?
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A Yes, | have.
And is Calpine in agreement with those conditions?
A Yes, they are.
(I'nterruption in audience)
MR ELLISON: You can't hear me?

(Someone in audi ence answered "no.")
Q (By MR ELLISON) M. Dykes, also in evidence in this
proceeding is a docunent entitled "Underground Transm ssion

Line Feasibility Study," which was docketed and served in
this proceedi ng on August 14th, 1998, and is Exhibit 23.
D d you prepare that study?

A Yes, | did.

Q Coul d you briefly summari ze the concl usions of that

study regarding the feasibility of undergrounding of

transm ssion |ines?

A It is technically feasible to underground transmi ssion
lines. There are two -- two nethods in which to do that.
There is a systemthat's called an extrude -- solid

dialectric (phonetic) cable, which is essentially a cable
very sinmilar to what utilities use to underground | ow
vol tage transm ssion distribution lines that are used in
undergroundi ng residential areas. There is also a system
that's called a pipe-type (phonetic) cable, which is a cable
that is inpregnated with a dialectric union which is either
an insulating -- nmneral oil or a gas -- nitrogen gas
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system

The consequences of undergroundi ng the transm ssion
line we sunmarized in this report that you referenced in the
docunent. Essentially, you would have to -- for the solid
dialectric option, you have to dig a trench, probably 40
inches wide and four feet deep, the entire length of the
line. You have to install splicing vaults, which would be
approximately 12 feet by 16 feet by six feet deep at every
splice point, and the splice point depends on how nmuch cable
you can buy on a particular reel. W concluded for the
study that was done, |ooking at the Iine route, which goes
strai ght down Township Road, all the way down the 5.5 nmile
route -- we concluded that you would need at |east 20
manhol es for that particular application

There woul d be significant disturbance during
construction to open the trenches, lay in multiple
ei ght-inch dianeter pipes; pull the cable through these
pi pes. Then there would be a transition section at each end
in the substations. There would have to be an access road
to remain above water level in the fields in order to have
mai nt enance or access to these manholes at any tine of the
year. So that would involve constructing a gravel road of
sonme sort.

The pi pe-type system-- the inpacts would be slightly
less as far as the anmount of area that needs to be excavated
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for the trench. W would require probably nore nmanhol es
because these cables cone on a little shorter reel. The oi
retaining system-- and | say oil here because the vendors
that we've tal ked to have not perfected nitrogen in storing
cable up to 230 kV. The oil fill systemwould contain
approxi mately 48,000 gallons of mneral oil, simlar to what
you woul d have in a transforner. power transforner.

The pipe would be very simlar to a gas pipeline. It
woul d be welded in sections in the field, lowered in the
trench, and then this cable would be pulled through, spliced
at the vaults, and then pressurized to about 200 psi of oil.

The inpacts we di scussed, audible noise -- there would
be no audi bl e noise, but there's a threshold of audible
noi se for the overhead route. Radio and TV interference
woul d be essentially the sane. There would be no problens
fromthat. Magnetic field strengths are actually higher
right directly above the pipeline. 1t dissipates quite
rapidly.

The visual inpact, obviously, would be mtigated for
the poles. You would still have nmanhol e covers and access
roadways. | think the land that would be taken out of
production woul d be greater because of this inpact. And

finally reliability; solid dialectric cables and pipe-type

cables are fairly reliable systenms once installed. |f they
fail, however, repairing themis a significant undertaking.
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The estimate that we got for repairing a failed splice, |
beli eve was a three-man crew working 48 hours straight, two
crews shifting off and on to nmake a repair.

So the worse case scenario would be that the
availability of the plant to support voltage in the
Sacranmento area woul d be taken away for a significant anmount
of time. The overhead line route; the repairs would be nuch
nore rapid. Economic inpact; the extruded dialectric cable,
when conpared to the double circuit overhead Iine, was
approximately 6.6 tinmes the cost. The pipe-type cabl e was
around the same nunber. It was about 5.4 tines.

Now t hese nunmbers were gotten fromthree different
cabl e manufacturers. And we asked them for prices of cable,
estimates on time of installation and inpact, and then we
prepared the cost estimate based upon prevailing | abor rates
in the region.

Q G ven the cost differences that you just described, in
your opinion, is undergrounding of transm ssion |ine an
econonmically feasible alternative for this project?
A No.
Q Your testinmony earlier on the voltage support issue
described the alternative transmission lines that would have
to be constructed if the Sutter project were not
constructed; do you recall that?
A Yes.
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Q The Sutter project is being funded in its capital costs
by Cal pi ne, correct?
A Yes.
Q And the economic risk of that project will be borne by
Cal pi ne, correct?
A That's correct.
Q If the project were not built, who would fund and who
woul d accept the econonmic risk of the alternative project
necessary to support voltage in this region?
A It is my understanding that the utilities in the area
woul d undertake that cost, and the Sacranmento Area
Transm ssion Planning Group in concert with the California
i ndependent system operators woul d work out the percentages
for involvenent of each utility based on the benefit, I
bel i eve.
Q And woul d you expect those utilities would pass those
costs on to the public or at least the repairs of those
utilities?
A Yes.

MR, ELLISON. That's all | have. M. Dykes is
avai l abl e for cross-exam nation

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: M. Ratliff?

MR, RATLIFF: Just a couple of questions to
clarify some of the statenents made earlier.

CRCSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR, RATLI FF
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Q (By MR RATLIFF) M. Dykes, you said that nanhol es are
required on the underground line. Can you describe the
manhol e structure? What does it |ook |ike? Wat dinensions
does it have?

A The manhol es woul d be about 12 feet by 16 feet by about
six feet deep. It depends on -- that was a reconmended

m ni num station that was given to us by the vendor of the
solid dialectric cable.

Q Wuld it be correct to assune that the nmanhole itself
woul d have to be above whatever the water |evel surface
woul d be in the field?

A Yes.

Q At all tines?

A Yes.

Q Do you have any idea how high above the field that

woul d be?
A | do not.
Q Wul d the road al so have to be a sinilar height to be

above the water |ine, whatever that height is?

A The access road woul d have to be avail able for use year
round.
Q I thought | understood fromthe nunbers that you gave

that the manhol es woul d be approximately a quarter nmle
apart for whatever distance the line ran; is that correct?
You gave the distance in feet but
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A Yes, the solid dialectric cable that we investigated --
for this one nmanufacturer came on 1600-foot reels.
Q Ckay.
A And the -- let ne find the pipe-type cable. | believe,
they are 2,000-foot reels, so that's correct.
Q So am| correct, then, that the underground |Iine would
require that every quarter mle there would be such a
manhol e structure in the field built above the surface of
the field to a | evel that would be above the water |ine,
what ever that should be?
A That is correct.

MR. RATLIFF: No nore questions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Any redirect?

MR, ELLI SO\ No.

EXAM NATI ON BY HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY
Q (By MR FAY) M. Dykes, how | ong woul d you neasure
this road being or the underground Iine being? What
estimate?
A The study that we did was estimating the route that
went straight down South Township Road and then cut across
country parallel to Murray Road down to the bypass.
believe, it was a total length of 5.2 mles.
Q So this road -- the above-water road woul d have to be
the full length?
A No, the above-water road would only be required where
43
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you were crossing the area where there's no access road. W
assunme that the route would go directly from South Township
due south to the site. W also assuned that there would not
be adequate space to place the underground |ine between
Sout h Townshi p Road and the existing irrigation canal, which
is on the left side of that road. And as such, we would
have to place the duct bank on the west side of that canal
whi ch would require a road in that area

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you. That's all |
have.

MR ELLISON: If | may, M. Fay, |'ve just been
handed a note that suggests there's one nore question that |
shoul d ask.

CRCOSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR ELLI SON
Q (By MR ELLISON) M. Dykes, in |ooking at your
underground alternative, did you assune a single circuit or
a double circuit line would be underground?
A We assunmed a single circuit line to be underground, not
the double circuit line that is preferred by the Sacranento
Area Transni ssion Planning G oup.
Q If you were to try to underground a double circuit line
such as a double circuit configuration such as Calpine is
proposing for this project, how would that change your cost
esti mat es?
A It woul d nearly double the cost estimates.
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MR. ELLI SON: Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you, M. Dykes.

You' re excused. M. Val kosky, the input fromthe public
advisor -- we can open it now to public coment on

al ternatives but obviously we're sort of sliding into
transm ssi on engi neering. W can nove to the staff wtness
on transm ssion engineering and then take comments on the
whol e -- of alternatives and transm ssion engineering. Wat
do you recomend? | don't want to put too nuch on the
agenda before people have a chance to coment for fear that
they -- we might have just passed too nmuch tine between the
testimony and your commrents. Any recomendations?

MR VALKOSKY: |'minfornmed because of the hour
and ot her circunstances that certain nmenbers of the public
woul d appreciate the opportunity to address the conmittee at
this tinme.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: kay. Let's do that. |If
anybody would like -- if anybody does want to take sort of a
nor e conprehensive approach, you m ght want to hold your
coments until the third -- the staff w tness on
transm ssion is on the stand. Let's go ahead and ask M.
Shannon to conme up and nake his comments regardi ng the
al ternatives anal ysis.

MR, SHANNON: Here?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: You can either go over there
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or conme up here. Try to speak in the mike if you can. |Is
that going to work for you? Be sure the light is on

MR. SHANNON: |'m M ke Shannon. |'ma |oca
grower, landowner. As | was listening to the testinony, |
was | ooking at the final assessment report, and | wanted to
see if they covered putting the wires underground. And al
al ong, we've been told that that was not a feasible idea.
And if you look in the final assessnment report, there is
nunerous points that 1'mnot intelligent enough to
understand when |'mreading it up there for five m nutes,
but they didn't go ahead and do the conplete study. So this
is just a fewthings | picked up on

First off, | read that this project is supposed to cost

i n the nei ghborhood of $350,000,000. Now if that is the
right number -- Chris, am1l in the nei ghborhood?

MR ELLISON: You're in the neighborhood. | think
it's alittle high but --

MR, SHANNON. Ckay. Let's call it $300, 000, 000.
Am | in the nei ghborhood now?

MR ELLI SON:  Yes.

MR SHANNON: Okay. According to the fina
assessnent report, the cost to put these w res underground

woul d be six to $7,000,000. Now if I'mrunning a business

and | can recover $350, 000,000, | should be able to recover
6, 000,000 nore. | don't think any conpany runs on a
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one-percent or two-percent profit margin.

Now we're putting in an industrial site in an
agricultural area. | consider nyself a professional at what
| do. | don't know a lot of other things but | can tell you
I can growrice, and |'ve proved that by staying in business
for 25 years on sone of the worst years we've ever had in
agriculture

And when | cone and tell you that the wires are going
to have an effect on growing rice or grow ng other crops
around these wires, | know what |'mtal king about, and
asked M. Ellison -- | told him "This sumrer, you can cone
out and look at nmy field." And | have a hundred and fifty
acre field that is split in half by wires. And in the
corner of that field, | cannot get any sprays in. | don't
know how high the plane has to fly to get the seed on. But
| basically get about a 30-percent crop every year

Now | don't expect the plane to crash, so we live with
it. But on the same token, if we put wires across rice
fields and we pay them an easenent this year, the sanme thing
wi || happen to those | andowners that happened to nme or ny
grandfather. Those wires were put in 50 years ago. The
anount of noney that he got 50 years ago does not cone cl ose
to what | |ose every year. The value of that property, |
woul d probably say, is probably 30 percent |ess than the
rice field next to me that does not have wires.
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Now -- so we come to an industrial park into an
agricultural area. And one of the major concerns is the
wires. According to that report, it is possible to put the
wi res underground. | don't understand why you have to put
the wires underground out in the nmddle of the rice field
because now it cones into play again with the gas |ines.

When you put these gas lines in, you're going to put
gas lines across ny rice field and, yes, it's going to have
an effect on how!l farm Wen are you going to put it in?
How long is it going to take you? The last tine you put the
gas line in across ny property -- and | understand the new
gas line will come right next to the old one. You did it
right in the mddle of ny rice harvest. And | was able to
work around it; no problem because | can cooperate with
peopl e.

You should be able to put these gas lines in or these
power lines in underground at a tinme that does not affect
the harvest or the planting season. And |'mpretty sure
that if we cone and say to the | andowners, "Put these wres

underground. Tell us when we can do it," we can do it. |If
you can put in as many mles of underground pipeline for
gas, you should be able to put in five-and-a-half mles of
power |ines underground and reduce the problemw th wires.
Now M. Akin brought up this norning that a pilot was
killed on his property. And |'m guessing that was Kenny
48
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Onstott. Now Charlie does the flying on ny property. And

I"'msure if you go to Charlie Onstott and say, "Is your

brother's life worth $6,000,000," |'m sure he woul d say yes.

Kenny Onstott, Sr. was the only pilot that fought agai nst

those wires and then they put those wires up there now, that

are there now, across our field and go down the east side
the refuge. He was the only pilot that really fought for

it. And his son was the one that was killed by them

For $6, 000, 000, we should be able to put these |lines

al ong Gswal d Road and O Banyan. |f you have the easenent

put in a gas line right next to a public road |ike you do

of

to

al ong Oswal d, you should be able to find that sane easenent

to put them al ong Townshi p and O Banyan, so you don't

interfere with the farmng. You don't have to have roads

going out that are not there before. It seems to ne -- and

|'ve been told by Cal pine nany tines -- we have nmany

intelligent people here. W should come up with an answer

The answer is put the lines underground at the cost of
$6, 000, 000.

I f your conpany cannot take that profit and not cover
that cost, then this conpany shouldn't go in. If you can
make $300, 000, 000, you should be able to cover $6, 000, 000
more. And that would take care of one of the nmjor
problems. Yes, Calpine did take care of the drainage
problem They took care of the water problem It seens t
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me one of the other najor problens is the wires. There is

an answer and, again, | ask anybody that would live -- would
have property -- if you own that property right now -- if
you own a piece of property -- | don't care where it is or
what it does. |f sonmeone conmes in and says, "W can put

these wires in the ground at a cost of $6,000, 000, which
woul d raise the price of our project from 300,000,000 to
306, 000, 000 or we can take the property and | ower the val ue
of your property. But we're going to give you a one-tine
cash paynent which will not cover the inflation rate of your
property 20 years fromnow' -- | don't think any of you
woul d agree to that. That's just common sense. So that's
my thinking on the option of putting the w res underground.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you. Bob?

MR. AMAREL: |'m Bob Amarel, Sr. [|'ma grower
down in that area, also, and |, too, am concerned about the
lines, and it seens to ne like -- | was very inpressed with

the way Cal pine mtigated the water and al nbst overni ght
t hey spent $25, 000, 000. And now we're talking about
spending -- even if you doubled it, 12 for the double
circuit that you're nentioning. | nean, | understand
there's a limt to everything, but the thing we're talking
about is a pernmanent liability to those of us that live in
this cormmunity that are not going to benefit one iota;
not hi ng.
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We're going to get to ook at that plant, and we're
going to get to look at those wires, and we're going to

wat ch sonebody fall out of the sky, and there isn't any

reason for it. | think if you have to increase the cost
since we seemto be the ones that have to give up -- | nean,
you guys are to put -- you're going to put the plant in

here. If it's for the greater good, then | think the
company needs to consider the greater good al so and put a
little nore dough into this thing for a long haul, and then
it will be safe all around. Thank you.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you

MR FOSTER. MW nane is Brad Foster. W got the
final report late. But in reading it, |I found a spot in
here where it tal ks about stage two construction for Wstern
of , maybe, an additional power line fromthe Sutter Bypass
switching yard to Elverta to make this plant a nore reliable
source of power for the greater Sacranento area; am!l
correct?

MR RATLIFF: |If you want, | can address it or we
can have M. MCuen address it. | can let M. MCuen
correct ne if I"'mwong but there have been di scussions at
t he SATPG about a second project which --

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: What's SATPG?

MR RATLIFF: The Sacramento Area Transm ssion
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Pl anni ng Group, which has been referred to previously. They
have di scussed the possibility of another project which
woul d connect with the term nus of this project and take the
power directly to Elverta which would have sone transition
benefits and sone vol tage support benefits if there were
such a line, but no one has actually proposed at this point
to build such a line. Certainly, Calpine has not proposed
to buildit.

COWM SSI ONER MOORE: Who woul d be the siting

authority for that -- for such a project were it to cone
about ?

MR. RATLIFF: 1'mnot absolutely certain of that.
It's a good question but it has not been -- | guess what |

would say is it has not been proposed, and it currently is
somewhat of a specul ative project inasnuch as there are a
nunmber of transmi ssion alternatives which different
configurations are being considered by the SATPG with
different costs to the different players. And this, at one
poi nt, has been called the "stage two." | think that was
the termthat was used to describe it. According to what |
believe M. MCuen has told ne, it currently is not any Kkind
of a definite project proposal, but it is a possible future
proj ect.

COW SSI ONER MOORE: Wl I, let ne ask Loreen, is
there anything that you know of that's in Wstern Area Power
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currently that has that type of project on the books under
any kind of consideration?

M5. MMAHON: No. In fact, it's the SATPG group
that is discussing it, and they have nany different
utilities in there, and they would be the ones to decide.
It's nothing that Western is working on.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: M. Ratliff, is this the
nature of the correction that M. Dykes was referring to
woul d have to be made six years out if Sutter was built but

sooner if it was not built?

MR. RATLIFF: Well, | didn't understand M. Dykes
to be referring to any specific project. | think he was
saying that you get six years of -- this gives us six years

to neet future needs if you do it now and there will have to
be further projects in the future because of continuing
electricity load growh.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: But this mght be an exanple
of such a project?

MR. RATLI FF:  Per haps, yes.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Well, actually, not. Let's
be clear. This project has a certain anmount of capacity;
the capacity to go out into the lines. Wen there was
another line, it sinply provides this project to get to the
distribution systemnore efficiently or w thout
interruption. But in terns of beyond the six-year period,
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they're tal ki ng about additional capacity; at |east that was
ny under st andi ng.

MR RATLIFF:. Well, | think they' re tal ki ng about
-- they're talking about a variety of alternatives, which

can include either capacity or transmi ssion fixes. And

think -- I'"mgetting very deep into the area of transm ssion
pl anni ng now, and our witness is probably going to kill ne;
but in awy, |'d like to put himon so he could actually

di scuss these things.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Why don't you make your
conment and we'll ask M. MCuen about this so we can put it
i n perspective.

MR FOSTER. What |I'mgetting at is if they're
even tal ki ng about another 30 niles of power line to make
this project nore reliable, the greater Sacranento area on
these alternatives, nmaybe it would be better to put this
project in Elverta or the Sac site down next to where you
need t he power where you won't be required to build 30 mles
of power line to get a nore reliable supply to what you
need.

This is an alternative here. You're going to get rid
of a lot of power line. And |'mnot just talking about 5.7.
You' re tal king about where we farm |'mtalking fromthe
Sutter Bypass to Elverta. |If this is what's going to conme
five years down the line, you got to get this power plant
54
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put in because you have to have reliable power. And if that
line goes down, this plant has to shut off according to
this, and that's not reliable power.

So | think a big piece of this pie has been left out,

and | don't think anybody in this roomeven realizes it as

far as ny neighbors until | just happened to read this
yesterday in this book; power line visual. | nean, there's
an industrial park in south Sutter County. It's designed

for these kinds of projects. W're awfully close to
Elverta. Again, there are two sites. W're getting rid of
power |ines again.

Now the dry cooling? There's not a water issue.

think south Sutter County, Sac -- you're not going to have a
problemthere either. Sure, the gas line -- you night have
torun thema little bit longer. | heard earlier today the

gas lines will be open for a couple days and cl osed agai n;
not a very big inpact.

You got to remenmber where you're proposing this plant
here -- if the | evee breaks, this whole thing s going under
six to eight foot of water. Sonmeone said, "Well, they're
going to put it up on a pad." Well, are they going to come
out and run this thing in rowboats? How are we going to run
the plant when it's an island?

They tal ked about putting the transm ssion |ines,
maybe, underground. You know, that sounds pretty good for
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me being able to live out that, farmaround it; |ook at
them Even the health benefit of, maybe, putting them
underground. | mean, none of that's been proven but with
this extra 30 nmiles of power lines, | think there wasn't
enough enphasis put on these alternative sites, especially
if it's power; it's headed for Elverta. Even if it's
biological; all of a sudden, they're putting power lines
across the valley. Biological just got opened up all over
agai n, also
So if we're going to talk about putting a project

somepl ace, let's be open to everybody. Let's not say,
"Wll, we're going to put it here." Then four years |ater
come out and say, "Gee, we can't get the power that we need.
We've got to run another power line." let's put this
project where it belongs. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you for your comment.
St eve Danna.

MR. DANNA: Good evening. M nane is Steve Danna.
I"'mw th Danna Farns. W farm down at the south end of
Townshi p Road and basically a ot of the property that would
be affected by where the power lines are -- underground
power |line would be proposed to go. 1In respect to the power
lines that your witness and what he studied on the
underground line, | just have a couple of questions or
things that didn't catch me quite -- putting it underground

56

(800) 200- DEPO SW TZER & ASSCC. (530) 342-0199



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

-- | didn't understand why you would put it all the way down
Townshi p and then all the way across all these fields for
five point sone mles. It seenms like it would be a | ot
shorter just right over O Banyan road and then back towards
the levee. It would be a ot shorter. It would be a |ot
nmore accessible. 1t just seems |like an overall better
route. | know that the gas |lines before -- they cane down
Gswal d and over. It would make a ot nore sense to nme if
that's the route it's going. | don't know why you woul d
estinmate it would go that other route unless you're
estimating it high

Secondly, he said "not economically feasible.” And
don't know. Wien you say "noneconomically feasible," | say
"Well, how can you really say that"? It seens like it's a
pretty difficult statement to make when you say -- how can
you determne that? | nean, if Calpine wants this project
-- if this is going to be a good project, it's going to be a
productive project, it's going to be a project that's good
for the cormunity and it's sonething that the energy
commi ssion and everybody feels is good -- you know, how can
you say that this 6,000,000 -- | guess is the number |'m
hearing -- throws this project conpletely out of being
feasible -- | think that we went through the water issue and
decided to raise the price tag by 25,000,000 at the drop of
the hat. So if we nmitigated that issue that fast for that
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much nmoney, it would seemto nme that this 6,000,000 or
7,000,000 to nmitigate this issue would pretty nmuch be a no
brainer, but that's kind of ny opinion on it.

It would seemto ne that putting these power |ines
under ground woul d be a very big part of the solution of this
project. You know, it would take away the visual -- some of
the visual effects except for the power plant itself. It
woul d take away a |l ot of the production inpacted if it was
placed in the right place and just overall nake it flow a
little better, | would think. So when you throw those
things into it, that's where | kind of wonder "How do you
say this is not feasible." So that's all | had to coment
on in regards to the power lines. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thanks very nuch. Any ot her
conments at this time?

MR AKIN:. I'mJimAkin. | guess everybody knows
me. |'ve been squawki ng enough today. The air pollution
has become a problemin Sutter County. This sumer it was
the worst that |'ve ever seen it. |'ve been here over six
years. The visibility of the mountains -- you just couldn't
see them You couldn't see the Buttes. Sonetinmes in the
eveni ng the conversion layers |ift a bit, and you' d see sone
of the stuff.

The reason |'msaying this is people seemto think that
air pollution wasn't an inportant thing in this county. |
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believe that air pollution is inportant enough that they're
going to keep clean air if at all possible. That would
probably be one thing in ny opinion that would hand you
peopl e your wal ki ng papers.

I can't, for the life of me, figure why you people
woul d qui bble on putting a power plant at the O Banyan punp
station as you have tal ked about and as the man just tried
to quickly say -- talk you into because that would be no
power |ines underground or above ground until the time cones
when you need another power line. Wen that tine cones, it
coul d probably be run down the bypass until you had to go
over land into Elverta because there is a strip of land
al ong the bypass inside the | evee that -- there's probably
roomfor even a big wide power line like PG & E put through
t here.

So there is a lot of alternatives that can do Sutter
County a lot of good. | think it could do you a |ot of good
if you'll just cooperate with what the people of the county
want. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you, M. Akin. Any
other comments then on alternatives? GCkay. | see no
indication. And we do want to try to finish up tonight so
"Il ask M. Ratliff if we can go ahead and put on your
Wi t ness.

MR RATLIFF: The staff witness on transm ssion
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and engineering is M. MCuen.
HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: M. MCuen, would you cone
forward? Wul d the court reporter please swear the

W t ness?

Testi mony of

AL McCUEN
called as a witness, having been duly sworn, was exani ned
and testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON BY MR, RATLI FF

Q (By MR RATLIFF) M. MCuen, did you prepare the staff
portion of the final staff assessnent entitled "Transm ssion
Syst em Engi neeri ng"?
A I did.
Q Do you have changes that you have subnmitted today as
part of the errata sheet which includes any changes that
you're nmaking to your testinony?
A Yes, | do have those changes.
Q Woul d t hose have been delivered to the conmittee today?
A Yes.
Q Ckay. Woul d those changes of that testinony be true
and correct to the best of your know edge and belief?

A Yes, it is.

Q Coul d you summari ze your testinony briefly?
A Yes. | may need sone help fromthe conmittee here.
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had i ntended to, besides dealing with the engi neering
factors -- to summuarize for the committee and parties, the
systemreliability and the benefits and the probl ens that
the SMUD area has. Having heard what M. Dykes said, |
think that would be very redundant but | can go through what
I have here. Let ne just say to start with, ny testinony
covers the engineering and planning factors of the project
switch yard, the double circuit outlet transm ssion line,
and these switching station facilities. |In addition, I

anal yzed pursuant to confornmance systemreliability and the
performance of the SPP project with regards to the

i nterconnecting system

The only thing | would add to what was said by M.
Dykes to make it perfectly clear with regards to the
probl ens that SMJD has now and that we expect to be
exacerbated in the future if sonething isn't done -- there's
simply no question about whether or not something will be
done; sonmething will be done and nust be done; if not this
proj ect, sonething el se.

A nunber of short-term neasures have been used by the
pl anners waiting to see if someone woul d devel op the project
or transmssion lines. As you heard, | think the SATPG --
the staff is a nmenber and there are three -- between three
and five transm ssion proposals that are being considered in
order to keep the lights on, essentially. So the question
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isn't whether sonmething will be done. Sonething has to be

done within three to five years. Those plans nust be on the

tabl e.

Q M. MCuen, in terns of -- when you say "sonething nust

be done," you're tal king about the alternatives that the

S-A-T-P-G or SATPG -- that they've been considering to

provi de voltage for Sacranento?

A Ei ther one of those alternatives -- sonmething like the

SPP or sone other generating unit.

Q Do those alternatives include both generation

alternatives and transm ssion alternatives?

A At present there are no generation alternatives that

I"'maware of in the systemthat are avail able to SMJD.

There is no proposed project that |'m aware of.

Q So all the existing alternatives of transm ssion

alternatives -- could you enunerate a couple of those just

so the conmittee sees the kinds of exanples of alternatives

that SATPG i s considering?

A At present there are three 230 kV transm ssion

alternatives; one from Table Muntain to Elverta; one from

El k Gove to Vaca-Di xon, and one fromEl k Gove to Tracy.

The di stance of those three varies fromabout 30 to 66

nmles. There's also a 500 kV alternative that's being

studied. | believe it's about 60 nmles long. Each of the

230 kV alternatives provides a varying | evel of power inport
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into SMUD that ranges froma hundred thirty negawatts to 240
megawat t s; not hing conmparable to the SPP project, but one of
those at least may turn out to be feasible, but, again, it
provi des nmuch fewer benefits for a shorter period of tine.
Q You heard today discussion of what was termed by the
person speaki ng of phase two alternative, which is a line
that would go fromthe point of interconnection of this
project, | believe, to Elverta. Has anyone proposed that
project at this point?
A No, and that project is not proposed by anyone; | don't
believe a decision, in fact, which is indicated in the SATPG
review. The Sacranmento Area Transm ssion Pl anning G oup
studied it and subsequently indicated in the various
meeti ngs, decisions on that, and other alternatives will not
be available until -- probably the earliest |I think would be
this summrer. As | understand it, their studies have been
del ayed and it's fundanental to a decision that they would
make whether or not this comm ssion approves the SPP and
whether or not the plan is laid that Calpine will actually
build it. They can't take a chance and they therefore have
to have plans that are goi ng forward.
Q Wuld it be safe to say that if this project is not
built, other transmission lines will be built somewhere el se
to try to provide the voltage support for Sacranento?
A Ei ther transm ssion projects will be built sonmewhere
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el se or perhaps we'll be lucky and soneone el se will propose
generating it. It could be either. Cenerally, froma
system perspective, a planner would like to have the
generation near the load, but it is possible for the system
essentially to continue to work with power inmports. SMJD
presently inports, on a hot day, 70 to 90 percent of their
power and, of course, that nmakes them subservient to a
transm ssi on out age.

MR. RATLIFF: | have no nore questions. | think
this witness should be avail able for cross-exani nation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you. M. Ellison?

MR, ELLI SON: No questions.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Yes, | have a question.

EXAM NATI ON BY COWM SSI ONER MOORE
Q (By MR MOORE) M. MCuen, you indicated that
sonet hing woul d have to be done. Let's inmmagine the
unt hi nkabl e, not hing gets done. So now take the tine period
-- it's now 2008 and not hi ng has been done. There's been no
transm ssi on upgrade and there's been no new generation
added to the local grid. Wat happened in that period of
time? Wsat happened to the SMJD district and to the
custoners within that region dwelling at whatever rate we're
going at now, two point "X' percent per year?
A The SMUD systemis such that something has to happen.
Okay? There is no choice. As | recall just for reference,
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the energy conmmission in '96 indicated that the SMJD area
needed sonething on the order of 900 negawatts. The bottom
line is that a local area like that -- the operation is not
dictated by there being enough negawatts in the whol e
northern state. |It's a question of having enough |ocally.
So nmy answer is if the SATPG or others, many who are
nonpartici pants with CALI SO (phonetic) authority -- does not
propose a facility to nmeet the needs of SMJD to keep the
lights on, then the CALI SO has a backup procedure where they
can direct at |east the participating transn ssion owner
such as PG & E but not Western or others and they would have
to take steps. It sinply isn't an option to go too far
The power has to be provided sonehow.
Q Well, let's say that under the circunstances that |'ve
just outlined, there was a lawsuit and the | awsuit
successfully enjoined PG & E from expendi ng new transm ssi on
into the area and the | SO the independent systens operator
had not been able to successfully cajole or encourage
sonmeone to |l ocate new generation facilities. How would SMJD
handl e the demands on the system which could take,
artificially, if you will -- and prevent it from expansion?
What woul d t hey do?
A I can't speculate other than to say that it's been so
clear to me, participating in the neetings, that they
finally would reach a point to keep the lights on to serve
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their custoners -- they'd have to go out and do sonet hi ng.
They basically don't have a choice. At some point they
can't wait. That's ny best response.
COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Thank you.
EXAM NATI ON BY HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY
Q (By MR FAY) M. MCuen, in your conclusions at the
time you filed your testinony, you said that the SPP woul d
provi de significant power to the Sacramento area and help
mtigate systemvoltage problens and provi de noderate power
for load gromh. Has that assessnent been changed in any
way by recent devel opnent since you filed your testinony?
A No, it hasn't. M testinony was based on the | atest
information at the time. Nothing's changed. The nunbers
are still the same. The nunmbers | report are still the
accur ate nunbers
Q And you concur with M. Dykes' review of the system
benefits in terns of --
A That's correct. That's alnost the sane as on this
pi ece of paper right here, and it's in nmy testinony.
Q And you believe that with the conditions of
certification that you proposed and Cal pi ne has accepted --
that the departnent would neet all requirenents fromthe
perspective of your discipline?
A That's correct and that covers -- fairly recently
that's changed. That covers the power plant swtch yard,
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the double circuit transmission line and all three possible
| ocations for the Sutter Bypass sw tching station.
Q From your perspective is there a reference from an
engi neering point the view of any of those three
al ternatives?
A No, they're too close to call. Al of themare
acceptable and it's going to be ny guess that which one is
selected will be based on environmental considerations.
They can be engineered in a safe and reliabl e manner.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Ckay. Thank you very nuch.
M. Ellison?

MR, ELLISON:. M. Fay, if I may, | have one
foll owup question to the conm ttee's question.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Sure.

CROSS- EXAM NATI ON BY MR ELLI SON
Q (By MR ELLISON) M. MCuen, you discussed the
reliability problemin the context of SMJD. Does the
reliable problemextend to Sutter County? And would the
benefits of this project in inproving that or addressing
that problemextend to Sutter County?
A I woul d suggest that it extends to Sutter County.
There's a 400- megawatt | oad dropping schene presently in
place. That's a lot of custonmers to draw to keep the system
fromcascading. SMJD s part of that is 230 negawatts. PG &
E is 150 negawatts. Roseville is 20 nmegawatts. | guess
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that's the end of the Iist. The way the systenis connected
together, right now very heavily with Western, | would
certainly think that there would be inplications in this
area also. It could be localized. They could localize it
to SMUD. It depends upon the system but it certainly could
spread here. For that matter, it could spread to the O egon
border, which is what we don't want to happen.

MR, ELLI SON: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Al right. That concludes
our testinobny on transm ssions engineering, and I'd like to
take comments now on this aspect of it before we finish
tonight. M. Wods?

M5. WOODS: | just have one thing to say. | have
about five friends that are retired fromPG & E, and they've
all assured ne that we need no power fromthese people. Qur
power is all hydro power. W have an abundance of power.
These guys are ny age. They're retired. They've been in
this all their lives. You can't tell me they're all nuts.
There's no way. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Okay. Thank you.

M5. WOCODS: Jeez.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: M. Amarel, speak up so the
court reporter can hear you.

MR. AMAREL: Correct ne if I'mwong but -- | nean
this whole thing just kind of changed right in front of ny
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eyes. It seens to ne like this plan's being built for
Sacranmento. This is not being -- there's absolutely no
benefit for Sutter County whatsoever, |et alone our area out
t here.

If SMUD needs a plant, then SMJD shoul d go to Cal pi ne
and find sonme and buy part of Rancho Seco and build a power
plant there. | nean, we don't need the power, and | agree.
I think you're absolutely right because SMJD i s going so
fast that they've got to find it somewhere and they're

thinking, "Well, hell, we might as well just |et Calpine

bill it down there and take out sone old farmdirt.
Nobody's going -- it's not going to make any difference.”
I mean, this is not -- this is not correct; not at all

And you hit the nail right on the head when you said from an
engi neering standpoint, you want the |load close to the
people that use it or the load -- the production close to
the load. And that's exactly right, and this is 50 miles
away or 35 mles dependi ng upon where you call the |ines.
Again, | go back to the sanme thing | told you fol ks at

the very beginning of the first neeting or whatever. | said
build the plant because we all know it needs to be built.
But it needs to be built in the right place. Then it wll
make sense for everybody. Thank you

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Did you get his name?

(Off-the-record di scussion was hel d.)
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MR FOSTER M nane's Brad Foster again. |If this
plant were to be built in the Elverta area, would that stage
two line that was nmentioned in here need to be built?

MR. McCUEN: No, it wouldn't. There would be no
need what soever, that |'maware of, for any addition south
of the Sutter Bypass with the station if the SPP project is
not built.

MR. FOSTER. But there is a possibility if it is
built at the present |ocation -- that we m ght have anot her
transm ssion line running through our agricultural area in
Sutter County?

MR. McCUEN. That's a possibility. [It's one of
four possibilities unknown for the future.

MR. FOSTER. | need to back up now. This is
before we went to dinner. They were tal king about this
pl ant taking older plants off the Iine that, you know,
cannot conpete. The use pernit on the existing Cal pine
pl ant, which we all knowis a very dirty plant, and | don't
know how efficient the existing plant is out there -- the
nei ghbors -- you know what we think is -- that plant has a
I'ife expectancy of 30 years.

Now i f we can get this new plant built sonewhere el se

and not in this agricultural zone, which is also still zoned
agriculture just like the O Banyan side -- there's no
difference in ny book. They're still zoned agricultural
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And that was sonething that was brought up earlier

Maybe this old plant's going to get taken off |ine because

it can't conpete. It might be sooner than 15 years. It
m ght be, like, in a couple years because, you know, the
technol ogy we're getting here -- we're tal king, you know --

these great big new plants are coming in. Conpared to the
old plants -- the old plants don't stand a chance so now
maybe we're going to get rid of a plant.
We're going to get rid of all the inpact in our
nei ghborhood. This new plant can be built in an industria
zone where it belongs or even naybe next to a | oad where
they need it, and we're left alone. W've gotten rid of
everything, and it's just a matter of planning not just
quick, "Let's set a plant. Here. W got to get the power to
Sacranmento."” Let's plan where we are going to put this
thing. Let's put it where it needs to be. Let's not just
throw it down and worry about how we're going to get the
power out of there four years fromnow to where it needs to
be. Let's think a little bit longer. Let's take alittle
nmore tine. It's kind of like this final staff assessnent.
We haven't even gotten to read it yet. But here we are
pushing forward. Let's take our tinme and do it right.
Let's not just throw this thing down and then try to make it
work. Let's put it where it belongs. Thank you
HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you
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MRS. AMAREL: Cookie Amarel

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Ms. Amarel

MRS. AMAREL: The first gentleman that spoke said
in his assessment that the Elverta one was not a viable
alternative because there was people in the area so we're
not people? They' re nore inportant people? That was one of
the big issues that | was rather concerned with. Wat's the
criteria for which people are inportant and which ones are
not? OCh, we farm That's right. W only feed people. |
forgot.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: M. Ratliff, did it have to
do with popul ati on density?

MR RATLIFF: |I'mtotally at a |oss for what she's
referring to. | don't think anyone said that Elverta was a
site that was unacceptabl e because of people.

MRS. AMAREL: It's in the final assessnent report.

MR RATLIFF: What's the page?

MRS. AMAREL: The first gentleman referred to --

MR, RATLI FF: Wsat page?

MRS. AMAREL: Okay. It was under the
alternatives. The Elverta one. Page 29. Page 29. There
is a conparison because it was due to -- it was nore cl oser
to residential people than we are.

MR RATLI FF:  Which testinmony are you talking
about ?
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MRS. AMAREL: It's on page 29, the alternatives

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: It does address popul ation

density.

MR BURK: |'mJerome Burk. Just a quick
question. What does it matter -- the popul ation density.
It's a clean plant. 1t doesn't use water. |It's not noisy

and it doesn't pollute. Wy does it nake any difference
where you put it? |If you need to put it near the |oad,

it's going to be required. Wy does that popul ation density
throw it out of Elverta? | don't understand.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: |'m | ooki ng.

MR. BURK: But | didn't get an answer.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: | can't answer the question
It does appear that a determ nati on was nmade to make an
arbitrary cut on certain density per acre; at least that's
what table one indicates on page 28.

MR. BURK: So maybe staff could answer ny
question. It was just an arbitrary question; the fact that
it should be closer to the |oad.

MR. PRYOR  The density -- oh. This one. The
density comes in to play with hazardous material s,
particularly or specifically the anhydrousi nnoni a (phoneti c)
that we use. It's closer to higher density people. Mre
people will be affected by rel ease.

MR FOSTER. Well, | thought aqueousanoni a
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(phonetic) was reconmended by counsel and Sutter County
bot h, but Cal pine elected to use anhydrous (phonetic), so
they're the ones that want to use the nore hazardous

material, but if they were to use aqueousanonia, which is a

lot nmore stable -- | use it in ny work in agriculture all
the tinme. | don't have a problemw th, you know -- now
we're in a populated area. |It's very easy to go to

aqueousanoni a and all of a sudden, a hazardous materia
probl em starts.

MR PRYOR And inpacts on traffic is a problem
there. There's also --

(I'nterruption in audience)

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: |'msorry. W're conducting
public comrent now. We're not having a dialogue. W're
going to try to get a few questions answered but |I'mafraid
it's going to break down. | think you can see where that's
going. There was a question about why rural popul ation was
di sfavored over a nore urban population. | think M. Pryor
answered that, but | do want to be able to take everybody's
comrents and we haven't been able to get to it. Please
state your nane

MR. BOYCE: Lewi s Boyce. | live on El Margarita
Road in the Tierra Buena area, and | paid the county about
$2500 a year in property taxes. PG & E just built a big
hi gh- powered transm ssion |ine about a bl ock behind ny
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house, and | don't even knowit's there. It doesn't make
any noise. It doesn't affect anything. |t doesn't affect
the property values. So | don't know what all these people
are holl ering about.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Yes, sir. Please state your
name.

MR. JANSEN. Andy Jansen. | farmdirectly south.
We have a thousand acres directly south and | know a | ot of
peopl e here. | have a second crop. Besides affecting our
rice production, this will also affect ducks. A lot of
peopl e here get noney from ducks every year. W got 80
acres directly south; the duck clubs will not even touch
because this plant is there. It scares all the ducks and
geese, everything away. They'll end up killing a whole |ot
of ducks anyway if they put this plant up. And one question
| got is why do they need to put manhol es on the underground
pipeline? |'ve seen plenty of gas lines w thout a nanhol e
for as far as you can see over miles and niles of property.
Why do they need to put manholes -- can't they dig it up
every tinme they need it? |'msure they can afford an
excavat or .

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: That's a real question. It
has to do with technology. It's a real different technol ogy
fromgas pipelines. W'Ill et M. MCuen talk about it.

MR. McCUEN. That question canme up before and
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think it's a fair question. The big difference between
underground transmission lines and a pipe is that -- one of
the things that the witness, M Dykes, nentioned, is that
these cabl es cone in perhaps 1300 or 1600-foot reels. OCkay?
That's as big as that reel can be. W can't -- you can't
find any equi pnment that will carry it fromwhere it is to
here any bigger than that. For that fundamental reason, we
must have very large pole stations where we can splice the
cables together. That is done in an atnosphere which is
actual ly cl eaner than a hospital operating roomin sone
cases. |It's extrenely technical. For that reason -- |I'm
not sure about sone of the nunbers that M. Dykes used, but
it's nmy understanding that there's sonething like 26 pole
stations for the Tudor-Mirray, and | would estinmate about 20
if the switching station was at O Banyan North. And those
must be elevated. W can't have sonething that inportant
under the water, essentially. That's just the way the
technol ogy i s.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: |If | may follow up, M.
McCuen, the other inpact of the underground line is not only
t he manhol e covers but roads. Wy would that be essenti al
crossing a field to install a road?

MR MCUEN:. | believe that road was south of
Sout h Townshi p Road, which was about 9,000 foot |ong,
thereabouts. Basically to get it up out of the field, get
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it up out of the water and provide access, also. That was
the fundanental reason for it. There also has to be a road
for the section between the plant, and let's call it the
north end of O Banyan Road. But in that instance, | think
they felt they could just elevate the pole stations.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Is this essential to
mai ntai ning and installing an underground transnission |ine?

MR MCUEN:. Yes, that's what it's about.
Basically, although they're very reliable and a | ot of nobney
is spent to keep themthat way because they're out of sight,
out of mind, it takes time to find a fault and it takes tine
to fix it and so you have to be able to get a crew out there
todoit. | think M. Dykes indicated that it m ght be
repairable in a week or perhaps less. | really think that
it's nmore like a week or 20 or 30 days, in ny judgment. |
certainly would -- well, 1I'll leave it at that.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Yes, sir, in back

MR. SHANNON: |I'm M ke Shannon. | have one
question about putting the wires underground. Aren't the
easenents the sanme along the county roads to put electrica
wire in underground than to put a gas |ine underground? You
have the sane easenent. Now |'mnot conpletely sure on how
t he easement works but | know when Cal pine -- or G een
Leaves was built first, they came in and arbitrarily just
started digging a ditch on our property. And they had the
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easenent to do it. Okay? They followed just inside Oswald
Road. So if -- and | don't understand. Maybe sonebody here
can tell me what the easenents along the county roads are
and aren't. But if those easenents are there, isn't that an
answer to -- being able to service those sane wires right by
a county road? |In other words, you can get the crews there.
They can be tested. If you were able to put a gas |line

besi de a county road on private property because of an
easenent, that sane easenent should be there to put an

el ectrical wre.

MR McCUEN: |1'mnot sure that | can respond
fully. Mybe this is sonething that we could bring up on
the next neeting.

MR. SHANNON: | have one nore question that | just
thought of. Could you lay the electrical wires next to the
gas |lines?

MR McCUEN: Yes, that can be done. That has been
done before when push cones to shove. And with regard to
the ampbunt of space that's available, it's nmy understanding
that there's sonething on the order of 15 feet between the
road -- | believe it's on South Township -- no. Yes, South
Townshi p Road. The applicant, in doing the layout, felt
that there wasn't enough roomin there and | don't know the
details of that.

MR. SHANNON: Would it -- say if the conpany,
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though -- if they could work it out -- can anybody tell ne
how nmuch nmoney woul d be saved if you laid the power wires
the sane tine you put the gas line in?

MR MCUEN. |I'msorry. Are you saying putting
the power wires with the gas line or --

MR. SHANNON: Yes. The question | had before was,
can you put electrical wres underground next to gas lines.

MR. McCUEN:  Yes.

MR. SHANNON: You m ght be able to?

MR. McCUEN. Yes, if you keep them far enough
apart, you can do so.

MR. SHANNON: kay. And now ny next question is
if the timingis right, would it save the conpany that's
doing it and if it's Calpine, would it save enough to
warrant putting the wires in the ground next to the gas
lines at the sane tinme?

MR. McCUEN: It sounds |ogical but my answer is |
don't know. | don't have any infornation.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: You know, that may be
sonmet hing that the experts could ook into a little bit
bef ore a workshop and the workshop is when?

MR. McCUEN. This Wdnesday.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: This Wednesday? And
transm ssion will be one of the topics?

MR RATLIFF: Well, transmission is today. The
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topics for Wednesday's workshop are | and use and vi sual

MR RICHNS: Wll, the real quick answer is the
natural gas line is a different route altogether than the
transm ssion |line, and where they have to interconnect for
the transmission line is not the same place where they have
to interconnect for PG & E gas lines, so they're going in
opposite directions.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: The routes are different.

MR RICH NS: Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Yes, sir?

MR. JANSEN. Does anybody know yet what -- where
they want to put the power |ine? Does anybody know that yet
for sure?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Well, Cal pine's indicated
its preference and the staff has recommended an alternative
pl ace.

MR. JANSEN. So has anybody deci ded where they
actually want to put themyet?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Well, that's the commttee's
j ob.

MR JANSEN: So you guys will decide it?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: That's right.

MR ELLISON: If | can address that briefly
because there has been confusion all day about that question
-- Calpine originally proposed the route down South Township
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to O Banyan and then O Banyan west to the interconnection

point; later changed that proposal to going all the way down

Sout h Townshi p; upon the recommendati on of the energy

commi ssion staff and the county, who asked Cal pine to

reconsi der the original route going back to South Townshi p

to O Banyan, Cal pine agreed to do that.

So the proposa

with Cal pine has on the table nowis to go down South

Townshi p to O Banyan and then west on O Banyan to the

i nterconnection point, over by the existing transm ssion

line. The other alternative that's now on the table from

the staff is a proposal fromthe visua

expert of staff to

go directly west fromthe plant across the farmfields and

then down south along the -- parallel to the Sutter Bypass,

the existing lines.

MR. RATLIFF: And if | can just add to that, what

staff is recommending is the consideration of that

alternative, and that's why we're having the workshop on

Wednesday because this has been a rather |ate proposed

consi deration. And we want to sort of

get everybody's

comrent on it. But if that would avoid the visual inpact,

we want to see if it could be considered.

COWM SSI ONER MOORE:  You' re having that discussion

under the aegis of |and use?

MR, RATLI FF: Yes, and vi sual

i mpacts.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: So to the extent that the
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choi ce of transnission route affects both |and use in the
fields and visual inpacts, the people living near by it --
they should attend that workshop if they can

MR, RATLIFF: Absol utely.

MR RICH NS: And that's Wdnesday at nine
o' cl ock?

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Back at the veterans
facility.

MR RICH NS: Correct.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: N ne o' clock at the veterans
facility where we were this norning on Wednesday.

MR. FOSTER: M nane's Brad Foster. Again, you're
going to talk to the experts on these other issues. An

alternative route was west fromthe plant down a dirt road,

I recall, I think, your recomendation for an alternative on
the power line route. | don't want ny nei ghbors thinking --
I nmean, | honestly think the plant doesn't bel ong where you
peopl e are proposing to put it. | honestly feel that way.

But we're going to get it.

Runni ng transni ssion |ines down Township Road is going
to affect the farm ng and duck hunting. 1It's going to
af fect, running dowmn O Banyan Road, farming and the duck
hunting. If you run it west out of the plant, it's going to
affect the farm ng and the duck hunting. Now if you were to
bury it running west out of the back of the plant -- | think
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the plan is to run it down a dirt road. So maybe one of the
ranchers will get an all-season road out of the deal

I"msure you're going to have to pay nme, but |'m
burying the line. But once you got over the 500 kV that you
were going to turn and then run west to the substation or
your switching yard -- why couldn't you continue to go
underneath the 500, cone up, hang a few insulators on your
existing 230 kV, run the Iines down to where you want to put
your switching yard, drop down, do whatever you got to do to
your power and then tie into your 230 kV. W' re talKking,
maybe, a two-mile run underground and nothing el se; maybe a
little engineering to get tied into your 230 kV, but no
added power lines. Your visual's gone. You're going to add
a couple wires to your 230 kV. That's if it's feasible.

Even if it's not feasible, maybe running another |ine
down there along your group of lines already. But | don't
know whether in this hearing we have today -- why we
couldn't just continue under the 500, hang a couple
insulators on the existing 230, go down to your swi tching
yard, do whatever you need to do with your power there, and
then tie back into your system

MR RICHNS: We'Ill be discussing that at the
wor kshop on Wednesday. The short answer is that once you
pass the PG & E line, you're going to the refuge, U S. Fish
and Wldlife Service land, and then you would be running --
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you woul d be interconnecting with a switching station on
U S Fish and Wldlife Service |land, and our indications
fromthemare not positive.

MR. FOSTER. Excuse nme, Paul, what |'msaying is
no switching station on their land. The switching station
stays where it is. Al's you do is cone up under the |ine
and tie in at one of the poles. | nean netal --

COWM SSI ONER MOORE:  You see, he's tal king about
basically cutting the underground run in half. Can you nake
sure that when you have the hearing or the workshop on
Wednesday that you consider an alternative which would
effectively run west underground for a mininmal distance with
an uplink of some kind up into the transm ssi on house and
then running down the existing towers to a sw tching
station. See if there's sonething -- a configuration Iike
that that could be evaluated and brought back. M. MCuen's
al ready sayi ng no?

MR RICHINS: Well, in others -- well, you answer

MR MCUEN. It's technically infeasible. You
cannot conduct -- you cannot connect with a 230 kV
transmission line sinply by com ng up out of the ground and
maki ng connections with the conductors. That's called a tap
and a line of that Iength and in that place could not be
protected. In other words, we could not keep the system
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together. Therefore, we nmust have breakers and di sconnects
and relay in order to keep the systemtogether. And that's
what |eads us to require that there be sonme sort of

swi tching station.

MR. FOSTER. |I'mnot tal king about tying into
existing wires. |1'mtalking hanging another set of arms off
your existing poles and running wires to a switching station
where you could do your transforners or your breakers or
what ever you need. You have the big, old steel towers down
there. |I'msure they could hold up a couple nore wres.

MR. McCUEN: No. No, they can hold the wires they
have on them maybe a little bit nore. But they could not
hold up anything like a new double circuit 230 kV with 1272
kV conduct or s.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: To the extent that there's
any interest inthis, it's worth bringing up at the
wor kshop, and you'll probably get sone give and take nuch
nmore effectively than here in the hearing.

COW SSI ONER MOORE: Let ne put it under just a

little different title. M. MCuen, you'll be there at the

wor kshop?

MR, McCUEN:. Yes.

COW SSI ONER MOORE: | woul d just inagine that the
question -- is there a hybrid solution? One that shares
underground with the switching station? So if you'll just
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eval uate the question, is there an hybrid alternative --
there may not be, but would you report back to the conmittee
as to whether or not there's an acceptabl e hybrid?

MR. McCUEN. There are hybrids and we will discuss
it on Wednesday and the next hearing date if you'd like.

COWM SSI ONER MOORE:  1'd appreciate it very nuch.

MR RICHNS: And US. Fish and WIldlife Service
will also be there and will give us advice regarding their
| ands.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Are they the ones that still
have the report outstandi ng?

MR RICH NS: Yes.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Ask themwhen it's going to
be delivered. Perhaps they can deliver it that day.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Yes, sir?

MR, GOMAY: My nane's Ed --

(Reporter interrupted proceedings.)

MR. GOMAY: Ed Gomay and |'m a resident out there.
And no easenents and placenent of it is very inportant with
the accessibility to underground vaults and the pole
sections. They run wire and sewer right down the middle of
the road in town all day long. That seens to solve both
i ssues of accessibility and easenent. And we get a new road
out of it.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you. All right.
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Well, the hour is getting late. | just want to nake a | ast
call for any comments regarding the alternatives and
transm ssion line engineering. O course, the visua
aspects and the | and use aspects of the transm ssion |lines
and other parts of the project are fair gane.

There's a workshop com ng up Wednesday and on Novenber
10th. Sorry. And I'd like to al so say that because of the
late hour, we will not be able to get to the topics that we
had identified as of |ess |ocal concerns, and so we won't be
taking those in the record tonight in ternms of the
affidavits. That is the list under Roman Numeral V, so
we'll start on the 10th with those topics.

And if you found that you have questions in those
areas, please pass them on Novenber 10th and by then you
will have had nore tine with the final staff assessnment, and
you may see if you can stunp the project nmanagers with your
questions on that. W anticipate that they'll be able to
answer the questions in those areas. GCkay. Any essential
| ast comments before we break?

M5. WOODS: M only problemis if Sacranmento needs
the power, build the dam thing down there and | eave us
al one. That would be ny coment.

COW SSI ONER MOORE: We' Il pass that on. Let ne
wap up with a couple of comments then on where we're going
next. W'Il nmeet here again on the 10th, and we'd like to
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encourage -- I'msorry. | said here. | neant in Yuba City
and | appreciate the correction. W'Ill be at the veterans
facility, and let nme say if there's anyone who doesn't have
a copy of the final staff assessnent at this point, it's not
because M. Val kosky hasn't been assiduously trying to pass
them out or to nmake sure that you can get access to them

I f you know soneone who doesn't have one, just contact our
public advisor. W'Il nake sure that they do get one.

We'd like to ask you to read the sections that you're
interested in and if you have comments that are -- or
questions that relate to topics that we've covered today and
you want to bring those up, we'll find a portion of that
hearing to go back and di scover them W nean this to be as
open and forthright a process as we possibly can

Second, | did indicate that because of the concerns
about the harvest -- that we would attenpt to set up a
coupl e of extra evening neetings. |'mserious about that.
We'll find -- assuming that there's -- appears to be that
kind of conflict, we'll find those days and publish them as
far in advance as we possibly can to nake sure that everyone
has additional time to be able to conment to us on this. W
just don't have the dates and tinmes. W'IIl all be checking
cal endars tonorrow to find out what's open and possible. |If
you have, again, other questions about the process or about
any of the discussions here that was presented today, please
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contact the public advisor's office. M. Val kosky has been

standing in for Roberta Mendonca, who is also the advisor at

the energy comm ssion, and she'll make sure they get to the
ri ght people.
HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY:  And I'Il just renind

everybody that the next hearing is Tuesday, Novenber 10th.
And that's like today. It will start at 9:00 in the norning
but then after the dinner break, we'll come back at 6:30 in
the evening for the evening session. Both sessions will be
at the veterans hall.

COW SSI ONER MOORE:  Thank you all. W appreciate
your time and effort.

HEARI NG OFFI CER FAY: Thank you very nuch.

(8:55 p.m, the proceedi ngs concl uded.)
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